
 
RIDGWAY PLANNING COMMISSION  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
Tuesday, September 27, 2022 

5:30 pm 
 

Pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, 
the meeting will be conducted both in person and via a virtual meeting portal. Members of 

the public may attend in person at the Community Center, located at 201 N. Railroad 
Street, Ridgway, Colorado 81432, or virtually using the meeting information below. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84740228488?pwd=dWg3T2dzMEQvc01qeGNnUE1LOVJmQT09  
Meeting ID: 847 4022 8488 

Passcode: 912425 
To call in dial: 408.638.0968 or 253.215.8782 or 669.900.6833 

 
Written comments can be submitted before the meeting to kchristian@town.ridgway.co.us or 

delivered to Town Hall Attn: Planning Commission 
 

ROLL CALL:  Chairperson: Michelle Montague, Commissioners: John Clark, Thomas Emilson, 
Jennifer Franz, Bill Liske, Russ Meyer, and Jennifer Nelson 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

1. Application: Variance for fence height; Address: 320 S. Amelia St.; Location: Cottonwood 
Creek Subdivision, Lot 17; Zone: Residential (R); Applicant: Efren Ramos Delgado; Owner: 
Efren Ramos Delgado 
 

2. Application: Sketch Plan; Location: Lot 3, PUD Ridgway Land Company Subdivision; Zone: 
General Commercial (GC); Applicant: 2-Build Ridgway, LLC; Owner: Ridgway Land Company 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

3. Minutes from the Regular meeting of August 30, 2022 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 

4. Updates from Planning Commission members 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84740228488?pwd=dWg3T2dzMEQvc01qeGNnUE1LOVJmQT09
mailto:kchristian@town.ridgway.co.us


 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #1 
 



 

 

 

To:   Town of Ridgway Planning Commission 

Cc:   Preston Neill, Ridgway Town Manager 
From:  TJ Dlubac, AICP, Community Planning Strategies, Contracted Town Planner 

Date:  September 23, 2022 

Subject:    Fence Variance Requests for 320 South Amelia St. for September 27th PC Meeting 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 
Requests: 1) Two-foot variance request to allow an eight-foot fence along the 

south property line between the front yard setback and rear 
property line where a six-foot fence is allowed; (Sec. 6-4-1(A)(1) of the 
RMC) and  

2) Four-foot variance request to allow an eight-foot fence between the 
front property line and the front yard setback in the R Residential 
zoning district where a four-foot fence is allowed. (Sec. 6-4-1(A)(2) of 
the RMC) 

Legal: Lot 17, Cottonwood Creek Subdivision 

Address: 320 South Amelia Street 

General Location: East side of S. Amelia Street at its intersection with Marie Street 

Parcel #: 430517413021 

Zone District: R Low Density Residential 

Current Use: Single-family Residential 

Applicant: Efren & Heather Delgado 

Owner: Efren & Heather Delgado 

PROJECT REVIEW 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is located at 320 S. Amelia Street, which 
is Lot 17 of the Cottonwood Creek Subdivision. The property is 
zoned R Low Density Residential and is accessible from S. 
Amelia Street. The lot is surrounded by single-family 
development on all sides and across the road. A map showing 
the location of this property is provided in Figure 1.  

Note: During a site visit on August 30, 2022, staff noticed that 
the applicant had already begun construction of the requested 
8-foot fence and is currently in violation of the code. 

  
Figure 1. Zoning and property location 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

REQUESTS 
RMC 6-4-1(A)(1) allows for a maximum fence height of six feet in the R Low Density Residential District. 
The applicant is requesting a two-foot variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy fence along a portion 
of the south property line between Lot 16 (333 S. Elizabeth St.) and Lot 17 (320 S. Amelia St.). 
RMC 6-4-1(A)(2) allows for a maximum fence height of four feet between the front property line and 
the front yard setback in the R Low Density Residential District. The applicant is requesting a four-foot 
variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy fence between the front property line and the front yard 
setback along a portion of the south property line between Lot 16 (333 S. Elizabeth St.) and Lot 17 
(320 S. Amelia St.). 
The applicant has submitted a hearing application, fee, letter of request, a site plan, and photographs 
for the public hearing to the Town. The property and hearing have been noticed and posted by the 
Town in accordance with Section 7-3-23(D) of the RMC.  

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
RMC §6-4-1 FENCE, HEDGE, AND WALL RESTRICTIONS 
(A)(1) No fence, rail, or freestanding wall shall exceed six (6) feet in height within the Town, except for 

those located within the I-1 and I-2 Light Industrial Districts which may not exceed eight (8) feet 
in height. 

(2) In the Residential and Historic Residential Zoning Districts, fences, rails or freestanding walls 
located within the area between the property line and the front set back line may not exceed 
four feet in height, except for fences designed and intended to exclude deer may be up to six 
feet high if they are substantially transparent at sight angles up to 45 degrees from perpendicular 
to the faces of the fence, and are constructed out of a: 
(a) Mesh; 
(b) Woven wire; 
(c) Rails and pickets or similar components which have a width no greater than their depth. 

RMC §6-4-4 VARIANCES  
(A) A variance to the provisions of Section 6-4 may be granted by the Board of Adjustment following 

the review procedure set out in Subsection 7-3-18 of the Ridgway Municipal Code, if it 
determines that the requirements of subsections 7-3-16(A), (C), and (D) of the Ridgway 
Municipal Code are met. 

RMC §7-3-5 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT  
(5) Fencing can be used as a method for screening and buffering, provided the fencing meets the 

requirements of Section 6-4. 

RMC §7-3-15 DIMENSIONAL AND OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
(A) Dimensional Requirements: Tabulated Requirements for Uses by Right. 

(4) "Structure Height" shall be determined as follows for application of the limitations as set forth 
herein: 
(a) The height of any structure shall be determined by measuring the vertical distance between 

the elevation of the lowest point of the natural grade abutting any exterior wall or 
supporting structure and the highest point of the coping of a flat roof or to the deck line 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

of a mansard roof or to the average height of the highest gable or a pitched or hipped 
roof. Structures that do not have roofs shall be measured to the height of the structure. 

RMC §7-3-21 VARIANCES AND APPEALS  
(A) The Planning Commission may grant a variance from the Dimensional Requirements, Sign 

Regulations, Design or Performance Standards, and other provisions of these regulations not 
related to "use", and excluding Off-Street Parking Requirements, following the review procedure 
of Subsection 7-3-23, provided that the criteria of this Subsection will be met…Variances shall be 
granted only if all the following criteria are met: 
(1) There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict 

letter of the zoning ordinance, and 
(2) The spirit of the ordinance will be observed, the public health, safety, and welfare secured, 

and substantial justice is done by granting the variance.  

RMC §7-3-24 – ENFORCEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION  
(A) The Building Official shall be responsible for the interpretation, administration, and enforcement 

of the provisions of these Regulations, as amended, the Official Zoning Map, as amended, and of 
any decisions entered by the Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment, or Town Council, 
pursuant to this Section. 

(B) No building permit, occupancy permit, or other permit or license shall be issued, nor shall any 
other action of approval be taken or allowed by the Town for any property which is not in 
compliance with the provisions of these Zoning Regulations, and any decision issued pursuant 
hereto. 

ANALYSIS 
HEIGHT 
As shown in the code requirements above, no 
fence (except for fences on properties that are 
zoned I-1 and I-2) shall exceed six feet in 
height, and fences located between the front 
property line and the front yard setback in the 
R Residential district cannot exceed four feet in 
height. This variance request is to allow an 
eight-foot privacy fence along the south 
property line between Lots 16 & 17. 

Although there are no specific regulations 
relating to the measurement of fence height, 
Section 7-3-15 of the Code does define how 
structures are measured, both with and 
without roofs. The height of structures without roofs are calculated as the vertical distance between 
the elevation of the lowest point of the natural grade to the height of the structure. (See Fig.3) In this 
instance, the full height of the fence is eight feet from the lowest grade to the top of the fence pickets 
and supports. 

The applicant purports there is a practical difficulty due to a 4-foot elevation change between the two 
properties, creating a privacy issue. The applicant states that the additional two feet will block views 

Figure 2. Fence Height Exhibit 

Max. 4’ Max. 6’ 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

between the two residential properties allowing for more privacy. Figure 4 below shows the proposed 
location of the eight-foot fence. 

The applicant offered photos (Figures 5-8) of the fence while under construction to provide a visual 
representation of the added privacy between the six-foot and eight-foot fence.  

Note: construction of the fence without Town approval is a violation of the Municipal Code. The owners 
have been issued a zoning violation.  

Figure 3. Measurement 

Lo
t 1

7 

Lo
t 1

6 

Figure 4. Property lines with proposed fence heights and surrounding zoning 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

 
 
MATERIAL  
Fencing materials shall be 
consistent with Section 6-4-1 of 
the RMC. The applicant states that 
the new fence will be constructed 
of wood materials. Site photos 
indicate the fence between the 
front property line and the front 
building setback is made of a wood 
frame and metal screening 
material. The fence is under 
construction and the materials 
meet the code requirements. 

  

Figure 5. Back view Figure 6. Side and back view 

Figure 7. Front view. Figure 8. Side view from adjoining property 

Figure 9: Photo of Front Yard Fence 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 

VARIANCE APPROVAL 
This variance may be granted by the Planning Commission if the two criteria listed in Sec. 7-3-21 of 
the RMC are met. 
1. There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter 

of the zoning ordinance, and 
2. The spirit of the ordinance will be observed, the public health, safety, and welfare secured, and 

substantial justice done by granting the variance.  
Other than the noted elevation difference between the two properties, the applicant has not established 
“practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships.” There may be privacy issues in the rear of the two 
properties, but the area between the front property line and front yard setback is open and visible to 
anyone traveling or walking along Amelia Street. In addition, the construction of an eight-foot fence 
between the property line and the front yard setback poses a safety hazard due to sight visibility issues 
for those backing out of the residential driveway and those driving on Amelia Street. 
As noted above, public safety cannot be secured with an eight-foot fence in the front yard setback due 
to sight visibility issues. The spirit of the ordinance could be observed with other privacy treatments 
such as increased landscaping. 
Furthermore, the property is currently in violation of the RMC because the fence has been constructed 
without a variance approval or a Town issued permit. Section 7-3-24 of the RMC states “…nor shall any 
other action of approval be taken or allowed by the Town for any property which is not in compliance 
with the provisions of these Zoning Regulations, and any decision issued pursuant hereto.” As such, 
until the property is in compliance with the RMC, the Town cannot approve a land use request.  

If the Planning Commission chooses to allow the variance(s), such a determination may be made, and 
such determination would bring the current violations into compliance with the RMC. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Following a review of the application materials against the applicable RMC requirements, staff 
recommends denial of the two variance requests to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy fence along the 
south property line of 320 South Amelia Street, finding that criteria 1 and 2 of Section 7-3-21(1) and (2) 
have not been satisfied. 

Should the Planning Commission choose to approve one or both requested variances, the following 
conditions should accompany those motions: 

1) Applicant shall follow provisions of RMC 6-1-3(A)(8) and (B)(3), which require the applicant to 
obtain a building permit to build the fence.  

2) Construction of the privacy fence along the south side of the property line should be designed 
and constructed in a way to not interfere with any easements or visibility along Amelia Street.  

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS 
Request #1:  “I move to deny the request for a two-foot variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy 
fence along a portion of the property line between Lot 16 and Lot 17, Cottonwood Creek Subdivision 
finding that the criteria set forth in Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have not been met.” 

  



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 17 Fence Variance 
September 23, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Alternative Motion: 

“I move to approve the request for a two-foot variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy fence 
along a portion of the property line between Lot 16 and Lot 17, Cottonwood Creek Subdivision 
with the following conditions finding that the criteria set forth in Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have 
been met: 

1) Applicant shall follow provisions of RMC 6-1-3(A)(8) and (B)(3), which require the applicant 
to obtain a building permit to build the fence.  

2) Construction of the privacy fence along the south side of the property line should be 
designed and constructed in a way to not interfere with any easements or visibility along 
Amelia Street.  

Request #2: “I move to deny the request for a four-foot variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy 
fence between the front property line and the front yard setback along a portion of the property line 
between Lot 16 and Lot 17, Cottonwood Creek Subdivision finding that the criteria set forth in 
Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have not been met.” 

Alternative Motion: 

“I move to approve the request for a four-foot variance to allow an eight-foot-tall privacy fence 
between the front property line and the front yard setback along a portion of the property line 
between Lot 16 and Lot 17, Cottonwood Creek Subdivision with the following conditions finding 
that the criteria set forth in Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have been met: 

1) Applicant shall follow provisions of RMC 6-1-3(A)(8) and (B)(3), which require the applicant 
to obtain a building permit to build the fence.  

2) Construction of the privacy fence along the south side of the property line should be 
designed and constructed in a way to not interfere with any easements or visibility along 
Amelia Street.  

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application and Support Materials 

 

























 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #2 
 



 

 
To:   Town of Ridgway Planning Commission 
Cc:  Preston Neill, Ridgway Town Manager 
From:  TJ Dlubac, AICP, Community Planning Strategies, Contracted Town Planner 
Date:  September 23, 2022 
Subject:   Lot 3 PUD, 2 Build Ridgway Sketch Plan for the September 27th PC Meeting 
 
APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Request: Approval of a Sketch Plan to create a mixed-use planned unit development 
and subdivision plat 

Legal: Lot 3, Ridgway Land Co. Subdivision, Town of Ridgway, County of Ouray, 
State of Colorado 

Address: n/a 
General Location: East of HWY 550, on the northwest corner of Hunter Parkway and Redcliff 

Drive. 
Parcel #: 4305-161-03-010 
Zone District: GC General Commercial with PUD 
Current Use 1 Commercial Office building and Vacant 
Applicant Jack B. Young and Joseph Nelson, 2Build Ridgway LLC 
Owner Rob Hunter, Managing Partner, Ridgway Land Company LLLP 

PROJECT REVIEW 

 
BACKGROUND 
This application for a Sketch Plan was originally submitted on 
March 29, 2022. A completeness review was conducted, and 
the application was accepted as complete on April 13, 2022. 
The original sketch plan proposal was presented to the 
Planning Commission for their consideration on May 31, 
2022, where the Commission tabled the application to allow 
the Applicant additional time to address comments brought 
up in the meeting. The latest version of the application was 
submitted on August 1, 2022, with amendments submitted 
by the applicant on August 22, 2022. 
This request encompasses all 8.95 acres of Lot 3, Ridgway 
Land Co. Subdivision (“Lot 3”). The property is currently 
zoned GC – General Commercial with a recorded Planned 
Unit Development (PUD). The intent of the GC District is to 
“… create areas for a mix of retail and commercial services, 
office, and other supportive uses to meet the needs of 
residents and tourists. A mix of higher-density housing types is also supported to provide for live/work 
opportunities and to promote activity and vibrancy within these areas.” 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 2 of 14 

 
 

The Ridgway Land Co. Subdivision was recorded in 1990 and created a total of 12 lots, right-of-way for 
Cimarron Drive (now called Redcliff Drive), various utility easements, and 4.23 acres of common open 
space & greenbelt. Of the 12 lots, 9 were for commercial uses, 2 for motel uses, and Lot 3 was identified 
as being a separate PUD. The Lot 3 PUD was recorded in 1990 and identifies building envelopes, parking 
space requirements, maximum customer floor area, internal circulation, parking lot design, and other 
dimensional standards. Lot 3 is encumbered by a number of easements for utilities, sewer lines, irrigation 
lines, landscape, directional signs, and bike path uses. 
The Ridgway Land Co. Subdivision Plat Restrictions, also recorded in 1990, provide additional limitations 
and restrictions, including parking lot design, access, and circulation design, building footprints, trash 
receptacle locations, the need for construction documents, and general procedures to submit plans to the 
Town for review and approval. 

REQUEST 
The applicant has submitted a hearing application, associated fees, sketch plan documents, and other 
required support materials for this public hearing to the Town. The property and hearing have been noticed 
and posted by the Town in accordance with RMC §7-3-23(D). 
The applicant is seeking Sketch Plan approval to modify the overall development of Lot 3 including land 
uses, circulation, parking, utility alignment, accesses, and dimensional standards. The current PUD zoning 
allows the development of commercial uses; however, it specifically does not allow any residential units to 
be developed.  
The revised layout proposes four plan areas identified as 1) Mixed-Use Center, 2) Cimarron Apartments 
Mixed-Use, 3) Town Affordable Site, and 4) REMAX building. Access to the project site has not changed 
and continues to be gained from Hunter Parkway and Redcliff Drive in multiple locations. Based on 
discussions with the development team, it is the intent to submit a subdivision plat to create separate 
parcels as well as common area tracts. The Applicant is still evaluating their options for pursuing this and 
may use tracts, building footprints, or lots with easements to manage the various property elements and 
amenities. These will all have to be figured out and submitted in conjunction with the preliminary plat and 
preliminary plan. 

 
Mixed-Use Center: This area is configured as a quad with extensive public gathering space between the 
four mixed use buildings. The land uses proposed include 23,760 square feet of commercial use divided up 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 3 of 14 

 
 

into general retail and restaurant uses and the upper two floors are proposed as a total of 32 condominium 
units. Parking is provided around the town center. This area is also encumbered by multiple easements for 
existing water lines. 
Cimarron Apartments Mixed-Use: As proposed, this mixed-use building includes 2,016 square feet of retail 
commercial use and 32 apartments spread between two three-story buildings. Parking is provided around 
the buildings and internal walkways and green space is provided. In previous discussions, the Planning 
Commission has suggested not put residential uses adjacent to the highway. While this revised plan has 
significantly relocated residential uses away from the highway frontage, buildings E and F are still in close 
proximity to the building. Because they are higher density and mixed use, staff is more accepting of the 
proposed location. However, additional commercial and/or office square footage in this area would be 
better aligned with previous public comments, planning commission concerns, and town code requirements. 
Town Affordable Site: This area includes a courtyard-type layout of 16 total residential units. The plan 
proposes a total of 16 dwelling units to be restricted as “employee housing” and deed restricted. While 
town staff is amenable to the prospect of additional affordable housing units in the town, there are many 
unknowns at this point as a well thought-out proposal has not been presented to town staff at this time. 
Therefore, staff cannot confirm that these units will be “Town Owned” as stated on the plans. Prior to 
submittal of the preliminary plat, and necessary development agreements, staff invites the applicant to 
submit a more formal concept to be discussed and potentially presented to Town Council.  
REMAX Building:  This is an existing professional office building and associated parking lot at the southwest 
corner of the property. There are specific items identified throughout this staff report related to this site 
which will need to be addressed through this process. Generally, these relate to noncompliance with current 
setback distances, existing parking lot design, easements, and the owner(s) of this property being co-
applicants on this request. Furthermore, the PUD should reiterate that residential uses shall not be allowed 
in this building as is required by the current PUD. 
CODE REQUIREMENTS 

The purpose of a sketch plan is to understand how a proposed development may impact the community in 
areas such as utilities, streets, traffic, land use, master plan conformity, zoning regulation conformity, etc. 
The following are various town documents, plans, studies, standards, and/or regulations which have been 
reviewed while evaluating the requested Sketch Plan: 

 2019 Town of Ridgway Master Plan 
 §7-4-5-(A) Informal Review and Sketch Plan 
 §7-3-11 “GC” General Commercial District 
 §7-3-15(A) Dimensional and Off-Street Parking Requirements 
 §7-3-19 Supplemental Regulations (Employee Housing) 
 §7-4-6 Required Improvements 
 §7-4-7 Design Standards 
 §6 Residential Design Standards 
 Ch. 9 Water and Sewer 

  



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 4 of 14 

 
 

ANALYSIS 
MASTER PLAN GOALS 
Figure 2 depicts the Future Land Use classification of the 
subject property and surrounding area. This parcel is 
identified as Mixed-Use Business and the table below 
identifies the desired development characteristics and 
densities of this land use classification.  

Mixed Use Business (pg. 59) 
Maximum Density / 
Height 

12 to 18 du/ac; typically, 3 stories or less, but may be taller in some 
instances 

Primary Uses: Retail stores, professional offices, commercial services, restaurants 

Supporting Uses Parks and recreational facilities, civic and government facilities, higher 
density residential uses, and alternative energy installations 

Characteristics 

 Mixed-Use Business areas are intended to support a range of 
commercial uses that serve residents and tourists. 

 Developments within these areas are more auto-oriented than 
those found in the Town Core but should still consider the 
needs of pedestrians and bicyclists in the overall design. 

 Higher-density residential uses are encouraged, either above 
ground floor commercial uses or in standalone buildings, 
generally as part of mixed-use development. 

Based on the anticipated densities of this land use classification, this property, assuming 8.95 acres, may 
allow between 108 and 162 residential dwelling units. Furthermore, the master plan allows up to 3-stories. 
The Sketch Plan as submitted proposes 80 residential units identified as multi-family dwelling units in 2- 
and 3-story structures with a mix of uses in some of the buildings. This is a gross density of 8.9 dwelling 
units per acre.  
The 2019 Master Plan provides important insight into the community’s vision. Though these goals are not 
firm requirements, it is important that the applicant showcase the various ways their project meets these 
goals. The project should be in general conformance with the goals and policies identified within the Master 
Plan and the Future Land Use Map. 
The following Goals and Policies identified in the 2019 Master Plan were considered when evaluating this 
project’s conformance with the plan. 

1) Policy ENV-1.2: Wildlife Habitat - Use clustering, open space corridors, conservation 
easements, and other techniques to minimize development impacts in wildlife movement 
corridors and areas with critical or important wildlife habitat. 

Figure 2. Future Land Use Map 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 5 of 14 

 
 

2) Policy ENV-3.4: Low-Impact Development - Design street layouts, grades, and site 
developments to avoid excessive runoff concentrations and minimize the need for storm 
sewer infrastructure. On-site natural percolation, detention, or retention should incorporate 
vegetation, vegetated swales, and other low-impact development strategies where 
possible to minimize the need for off-site infrastructure improvements. 

3) Policy ENV-4.1: Green Buildings – Encourage the use of proven and durable green building 
technology in all new development in order to increase energy efficiency, water 
conservation, human health, and use of local materials while balancing the impact of costs. 

4) Policy ENV-4.2: Renewable Energy - Encourage the use of carbon-free and renewable 
energy systems within the Town and support the goal of carbon neutrality for Colorado. 
Support the inspiration and innovation of those who live, work, and visit Ridgway to create 
a low-carbon economy and lifestyle that improves the health, shared prosperity, and long-
term security of our unique mountain community. 

5) Policy COM-1.1: Workforce Housing – Work with Ouray County and the City of Ouray to 
develop housing units designed and priced for employees living and working in Ouray 
County. The Town of Ridgway should initially focus on those living and working in Ridgway. 

6) Policy COM-1.2: Private Sector Responsibilities – Acknowledge the role of the private sector 
as a necessary partner in addressing the community’s affordable and workforce housing 
needs. 

7) Policy COM-2.1: Diversity of Housing Types – Encourage new development to 
accommodate a variety of housing sizes, household types, tenure types, densities, and 
prices. 

8) Policy COM-2.2: Housing Options - Support the development of a range of housing options 
in Ridgway, including but not limited to townhomes. 

9) Policy COM-2.3: Resident-Occupied Housing – Support strategies that help maintain 
resident-occupied housing in Ridgway, rather than housing occupied by second-
homeowners. 

10) Policy CHR-1.1: Neighborhood Character - Encourage the development of neighborhoods 
that enhance and reflect the character of Ridgway through quality design, cohesive 
materials, and integration of natural features. 

11) Policy CHR-1.2: Neighborhood Walkability and Bikeability - Enhance walkability and 
bikeability within existing neighborhoods and between other areas of town. Ensure safe 
on- and off-street pedestrian and bicycle connections are provided in all new 
neighborhoods. 

12) Policy CHR 6.1: Corridor and Gateway Character - Highway corridors and gateways to 
Ridgway should enhance and benefit the community’s small-town character and preserve 
mountain vistas. 

13) Policy CHR 6.2: Near-Gateway Development Considerations – Encourage aesthetic 
improvements for existing and new developments bordering highways. Consider context, 
configuration, and design in evaluating development on properties adjacent to gateway 
areas to ensure new development contributes to the desired character of the gateway. 

14) Policy CHR-7.2: Trail Development - Encourage and support trail development within and 
surrounding Ridgway, particularly trails that fill gaps or key trail linkages in the Town’s 
current system and improve continuity and connectivity. Where feasible, create trails that 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 6 of 14 

 
 

support walking, hiking, biking, and other non-motorized uses. Trail development should 
not impede existing agricultural uses and do not cross private property unless 
arrangements have been made with the property owner. 

15) Policy GRO-1.2: Balanced Mix of Uses – Accommodate a balanced mix of residential, 
employment, retail, and commercial services and institutional uses that allows residents to 
live, work, play, learn and conduct more of their daily business in Ridgway. 

16) Policy GRO-1.3: Mixed-Use Development – Promote vertically or horizontally mixed-use 
development, where appropriate, to encourage more opportunities to live and work in 
Ridgway, and to add vibrancy and diversity to existing centers. 

17) Policy GRO-1.4: Underutilized Areas – Encourage infill development on vacant parcels and 
the redevelopment or adaptive reuse of underutilized parcels or structures in the Historic 
town Core or other areas where infrastructure and services are already in place. 

18) Policy GRO-1.5: Design of New Development - Ensure new development and 
infill/redevelopment are compatible with the surrounding area or neighborhood, 
particularly in the Historic Town Core were maintaining the historic character of Ridgway 
is desired. 

19) Policy GRO-1.6: Clustered Development - Encourage clustering of residential development 
where appropriate to preserve open space, agricultural land, wildlife habitat, visual quality, 
and other amenities.  

20) Policy GRO-2.1: Growth Pays for Growth - Ensure that the costs of extending or expanding 
Town infrastructure and services to support new development are borne by the developer 
and not the Town or residents. This includes the impacts new development will have on 
Town facilities and utilities. 

21) Policy GRO-2.2: Adequate Public Facilities – Proposed development should demonstrate 
that existing Town facilities and infrastructure have the capacity to serve the development 
while still maintaining an acceptable level of service, as determined by the Town, or, if 
supported by the Town, development shall fill in any infrastructure, utility, facility, and 
service gaps. 

22) Policy GRO 3.2: On-Site Stormwater Management - Encourage new development to 
manage stormwater on-site, using low-impact development techniques or other best 
practices. 

23) Policy GRO-4.2: Traffic Impacts of Development – Ensure that future development does 
not create traffic volumes or patterns that will create traffic hazards or interrupt traffic 
flow. 

24) Policy GRO-4.7: Connectivity of New Development – Encourage new development to 
include paths, trails, and other connections to facilitate biking and walking throughout 
town. 

The review of these policies did find areas that should be watched as the development moves forward: 
1. Maintain the existing trail on the property and ensure the trail is located within an 

easement. 
2. Employee housing is shown in one building in the area labeled Town Affordable Site. 
3. Incorporate strategies to maintain owner-occupied residences. 
4. Consider enhancements to the gateway corridor side of the development. 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 7 of 14 

 
 

5. The proposed revisions suggest a reduction in the overall commercial square footage 
allowed in the development. While this is being expressed as a positive change, based on 
previous and ongoing discussions between town staff, the Planning Commission, and the 
Town Council, there are some shared concerns about the continued reduction in 
commercial and industrial uses within the town. From an economic perspective, balanced 
land uses can provide a sustainable sales tax revenue as well as an appropriate mix of 
housing types and price points as well as provide a range of jobs from retail jobs to 
professional offices and manufacturing opportunities as well. How this reduction in 
commercial square footage may impact the overall balance in Ridgway’s land use is 
unknown and should be evaluated. 

LAND USES 
The majority of this property is currently undeveloped; however, in the southwest corner, a commercial 
structure with parking has been built and is labeled as the REMAX building. Although the terms “apartment” 
and “condo” are used on the Sketch Plan, both of these terms are identified under the RMC definition of 
Multiple Family Dwelling. Multiple Family Dwelling is defined as: “Five or more dwelling units, within a single 
building and located on a single lot, including apartments and condominiums. This definition also includes 
any number of dwelling units located within a single building that contains a nonresidential primary use on 
the ground floor of the building, and that does not meet the definition of employee housing.” Based on this 
definition, the proposed uses have been reviewed under the multiple-family dwelling unit standards. 
Park: A “Kids Park” and “Drywell” is proposed in the northwest portion of the property. Not much additional 
information is provided on the amenities and improvements of this park. However, this amenity is welcomed 
and additional information, including site design and layout, amenities, and connections to adjacent 
properties will need to be provided as part of the preliminary plan and preliminary plat submission. 
DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 
Section §7-3-15(A) sets forth the required dimensional standards which shall be met for various uses within 
each zone district. For the GC – General Commercial District, the following standards apply to all uses: 

Standard Requirement Provided 

Min. Lot Width 30’ Unknown* 
Min. Lot Size 5,000sf Unknown* 
Max. Lot Coverage* 60% Unknown* 
Min. Front Setback* 15’ Unknown* 
Min. Rear Setback* 8’ Unknown* 
Min. Side Setback* 8’ Unknown* 
Max. Side on Corner Lot* 7.5’ Unknown* 
Structure Height* 27’ Unknown* 

*No specific dimensional data was provided on the Sketch Plan submitted or was unable to be deciphered 
in the plan sets. The proposed sketch seems to allow ample lot area to meet the above applicable 
dimensional standards, but these cannot be verified at this time. Below are additional thoughts and issues 
that need to be addressed during the next stages of the platting and PUD review process. 

 Building Height:  The Sketch Plan application seeks to increase building height from two stories 
to three stories. The GC District allows building heights up to 27’ by right and heights between 
27’ and 35’ through a Conditional Use Review. This change in building height will be evaluated 
pursuant to the RMC provisions and included in the proposed PUD in conjunction with the 
preliminary plan review process. Below are the proposed building heights for each plan area: 

  



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 8 of 14 

 
 

Mixed-Use Center area: Approximately 35’ 

 
Town Affordable Site: Approximately 29’ and 24’ 

 

Buildings F and G within Cimarron Apartments area:  Approximately 32’-6” 

 
 Setbacks: If individual ownership of all the dwelling units is proposed, the above setbacks may 

need to be addressed with the PUD application. A condominium plat is recommended for the 
ultimate delineation of privately owned units on the second and third floors of the Mixed-Use 
Center area buildings. 

 Parking Standards: The amount of parking required based on the various proposed uses was 
analyzed with the Sketch Plan and the full analysis is provided later on in this staff report within 
the Parking section. 

 Landscaping: No landscape plan was provided with the original PUD; however, one will be 
required as part of the preliminary plat and preliminary plan submittal. While CC&Rs were 
recorded with the original Final Plat and PUD in 1990, the question of maintenance should be 
reevaluated with the updated documents. There appear to be adequate landscaping 
requirements provided throughout the project and Sheet 1 states that 4.1 acres, or 46% of 
the gross site area, is provided as green space. Additional assessment and analysis will need 
to be completed when the preliminary plan and preliminary plat are submitted for review.  



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 9 of 14 

 
 

 REMAX Building: If this structure is under separate ownership, the owner of that parcel must 
be an applicant to this request and any future land use applications. 

 Trash Enclosures: Per the “Ridgway Land Company Subdivision Plat Restrictions” note 9, trash 
enclosures shall be located to the rear of the front building line. In some instances, as shown 
on the Sketch Plan, the trash enclosure locations do not meet this requirement. Note 7 also 
requires that trash receptacles be a screen from view of all public spaces. 

ACCESS 
The Sketch Plan proposes one access point from Hunter Parkway and three access points from the 
extension of Redcliff Drive (previously Cimarron Drive). This proposal does not seem to meet the “Ridgway 
Land Company Subdivision Plat Restrictions” Note 10 which limits access to two single driveway lanes for 
each lot from a public street. Access will be further evaluated and designed in conjunction with the 
preliminary plat submission. 
Internal connections allow connectivity throughout the development. The internal roadways and drive aisles 
are either 30’ or 24’ of pavement. Without dimensional data, it is unclear if the one proposed access from 
Hunter Parkway meets CDOT’s spacing standards between this intersection and the intersection with HWY 
550. Since the existing access for the REMAX building aligns with Palomino Trail, and this looks to be the 
location of the proposed access, it may have been previously reviewed with the 1990 application. The 
applicant should coordinate with CDOT Region 5 to understand if this change in land use will require any 
permit or improvements at the off-site intersection with HWY 550. The preliminary plat application and 
supporting materials will be referred to CDOT as part of that review process. 
While there is an existing trail and sidewalks, the project area and this neighborhood in general have limited 
pedestrian access – specifically across HWY 550. Due to the proximity to Highway 550 and the proposed 
residential density on this property, there should be a consideration regarding the safe pedestrian crossing 
of Highway 550. A grade-separated crossing is anticipated to cross HWY 550 in the vicinity of this project. 
Pedestrian connections should be planned to connect these improvements. 
PARKING 
The original Lot 3 PUD identified a required amount of parking for each area as well as an overall number 
of parking spaces for the project. Since this project has altered the proposed land uses and RMC 
requirements have changed since the PUD was originally approved, the parking requirements were 
reviewed against the current RMC requirements and updated proposed uses. The RMC requires one space 
per dwelling unit for all residential other than single-family and duplexes. A total of 76 multi-family dwelling 
units in the form of either condominiums, rental apartments, or affordable units are proposed for the 
project. This requires a total of 76 parking spaces. In addition, the project proposes 17,896 square feet of 
general retail space, 7,880 square feet of restaurant space, and 5,400 square feet of existing professional 
office space (REMAX). In total, the proposed land uses, as depicted in the Sketch Plan, requires 250 parking 
spaces, and 324 parking spaces are provided. The table below provides a breakdown of required parking 
for each of the four plan areas. 

Area Required 
Parking 

Provided 
Parking Difference 

Mixed Use Center 175 202 +27 
Cimarron Apartments MU 41 60 +19 
Town Affordable Site 16 32 +16 
REMAX 18 30 +12 
Total: 250 324 +74 

For parking lots with 301 – 400 parking spaces, ADA requires a total of 6 accessible spaces and 2 van-
accessible spaces. These are not depicted on the Sketch Plan but will need to be identified on the 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 10 of 14 

 
 

Preliminary Plan set submitted. They should be provided in such a location to provide clear and accessible 
entry to buildings including clearly delineated striped travel ways through parking areas, where appropriate. 
Below is a further breakdown of the uses proposed in each plan area and the corresponding parking 
requirements. 
Mixed-Use Center: 

 32 Multi-family Condominiums:  1 space / DU = 32 spaces required 
 7,880sf of restaurant: 1 space / 100sf = 79 spaces required 
 15,880sf of retail:  1 space / 250sf = 64 spaces required 

o Required: 32 + 79 + 64 = 175 spaces 
o Provided: 202 spaces 

Cimarron Apartment MU: 
 32 Multi-family Apartments: 1 space / DU = 32 spaces required 
 2,016sf of retail: 1 space / 250sf = 9 spaces required 

o Required:  32 + 9 = 41 spaces 
o Provided: 60 spaces 

Town Affordable Site: 
 16 Multi-family rental units: 1 space / DU = 16 spaces required 

o Required: 16 spaces 
o Provided: 32 spaces 

REMAX Building: 
 5,400sf of professional office: 1 space / 300sf = 18 spaces requires 
 Provided: 30 spaces 

While there appears to be adequate space on each lot to provide the minimum required number of spaces, 
parking will be reviewed in conjunction with each individual building permit application. 
Stormwater 
Page 12 of the application includes a very preliminary drainage plan that shows contour lines and drainage 
arrows with some spot elevations. This scanned copy is difficult to understand and is lacking technical 
details that would be needed to determine the feasibility of the design. However, since the request is for 
sketch plan approval, additional detailed calculations and engineered drawings will be provided with the 
preliminary plan. Based on the town’s review of the conceptual drainage plan, a number of comments 
identifying information required to be submitted with the preliminary plat have been identified. 
A detention pond is shown on the north side of the property adjacent to the proposed Kids Park. However, 
some of the assumptions and methodologies provided in the analysis are inconsistent with the Town’s 
regulations. There are concerns regarding the Applicant’s ability to legally discharge stormwater into the 
ditch. The applicant is encouraged to reference these regulations when preparing the plat and PUD 
application.  
UTILITIES 
The project will be served by Town of Ridgway water and sewer system. There are currently water and 
sewer mains installed within dedicated easements on the property. The applicant notes that changes will 
be necessary to water service lines and taps because of the changes to the number, location, and layout 
of the buildings from the original PUD. The change in land uses from commercial to residential significantly 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 11 of 14 

 
 

increases water and sewer demand. The information provided regarding water demand is acceptable for 
average daily but not peak demand. The applicant shall provide additional justification verifying the water 
and sewer demand of this project which will need to be reviewed and agreed upon by Town staff before 
setting the preliminary plat for a public hearing. 
Water Service: There’s an overall concern with the water demand from this level of density. The current 
proposal shows the conversion of fire lines in the middle of the lot to water mains. This would result in 
dead-end water lines where the Town requires a looped system. Fire suppression systems will be required 
for all the multi-family structures and the applicant is required to get separate water taps for domestic and 
fire suppression. 
Sewer Service: Based on the design and information provided, there is an initial concern that adding more 
load to the lift station might create issues with clogging, potentially with peak flows, and could trigger the 
need for updated site approval. It could be necessary to require a gravity sewer extended under the 
highway. And, if the sewer requires a 12” main, there are likely downstream improvements needed as well. 
 
STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS 
Town staff and consultants have reviewed the Sketch Plan application and supporting materials against 
applicable Municipal Code and development standards. The following are the comments, recommendations, 
and findings of the staff’s review presented for the Planning Commission’s consideration and evaluation of 
the application. 

1. Prior to the submittal of the preliminary Plat, correct the name of the sketch plan document to 
Lot 3, 2Build Ridgway Sketch Plan. Reference this name consistently throughout revisions. 

2. Ensure the PUD application and preliminary plat accurately reflect the location and size of the 
existing REMAX building since the current structure does not conform to the building envelopes 
originally approved with the 1990 PUD. 

3. A traffic study may be necessary with the Preliminary Plat application to review possible impacts 
to the CDOT access permit at Highway 550. 

4. Viewshed protections in the form of easements or notes restricting the height of buildings and 
structures in certain locations shall be incorporated into the PUD and preliminary plat 
application. A rendering of various perspectives shall be submitted with the preliminary plat 
and preliminary plan to ensure 

5. Provide a more detailed analysis of parking with the Preliminary Plat, including identification of 
parking space dimensions, required off-street parking, and proposed on-street parking. Clarify 
if on-street parking is located within the Town right-of-way. The parking requirements set forth 
in Section 7-3-15(C) of the RMC and applicable ADA accessible parking stall requirements shall 
apply to the parking requirements. 

6. Provide a draft update to the CCRs regarding long term maintenance of common amenities 
such as the detention pond, landscape areas, driveways, parking, etc. with the preliminary plat 
submittal.  

7. The “Ridgway Land Company Subdivision Plat Restrictions” note 8 requires the 20’ easement 
along Highway 550 to be planted, developed and maintained by the Association. A landscaping 
plan shall be submitted with the preliminary plan. 

8. Provide information on the existing trail/bike path ownership, easements, and maintenance to 
ensure that public access is guaranteed for perpetuity. 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 12 of 14 

 
 

9. All existing platted easements that are no longer needed per utility redesign, must be vacated 
on the final plat and depicted as such on the preliminary plat. 

10. Further discussion regarding the petition for an Improvement District per the “Ridgway Land 
Company Subdivision Plat Restrictions” document from October 1990 shall be held prior to 
submission of the preliminary plat and PUD application. 

11. The “Ridgway Land Company Subdivision Plat Restrictions” must be amended or rescinded in 
conjunction with this project since the restrictions are not consistent with the updated design, 
layout, and land uses. 

12. Provide verification from the school district that the proposed school bus turn-out lane is 
located in an appropriate location and verification from the Town Engineer that this 
modification to the Town right-of-way is acceptable. 

13. Provide an analysis on proposed water conservation measures and landscaping restrictions and 
how they compare to the Town’s landscape regulations with the preliminary plat. 

14. Consider requiring wildlife-friendly trash enclosures and measures to reduce conflicts between 
wildlife and residents. Address this item further with the submittal of the preliminary plat. 

15. Internal roads should be designed to meet applicable Town construction standards, be paved, 
and have ADA compliant sidewalks in accordance with Town standards and specifications. 

16. Provide clarification on the ultimate intention for dwelling unit ownership and replating of the 
subdivision. Consider if common areas should be identified as easements or tracts, rather than 
a separate lot, and if only the buildings themselves should be separated out into individual lots. 

17. On the PUD, provide specific dimensional standards for all areas of the GC District where the 
proposed structures do not comply with existing standards. 

18. A sidewalk and adequate crosswalk delineations adjacent to the Kids Park shall be provided to 
ensure safe access to the park from within the project. 

19. The property should be subdivided in conjunction with the PUD to establish building areas, 
condominium lots, easements (public access, roads, drainage, trail, parking, utility, emergency, 
etc.), parking areas, and common ownership areas. This will also clarify ownership and 
maintenance responsibilities. 

20. The REMAX building is not currently located on its own lot. This subdivision process shall make 
this property conform to current town standards. As such, the owner of that lot shall be a co-
applicant on this application and a required signature on the preliminary plat and preliminary 
plan. Town staff will not accept an application for a preliminary plat or preliminary plan without 
that property owner authorizing this request. 

21. Appropriate studies, plans, and/or reports addressing the currently available capacities and this 
development’s impact on the water and sewer utilities as well as the transportation network. 
Any required improvements or enhancements shall be the responsibility of the developer. 

22. The PUD was originally intended to be a commercial development. However, the project 
proposes a significant change in the land use to be residential. This is a trend occurring 
throughout the Town where land reserved for commercial use is being developed with 
residential units. Additional town-wide analysis should be completed to understand the impacts 
that this change in land use will have on local employment opportunities and financial 
sustainability. 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 13 of 14 

 
 

23. As is continually contemplated, a pedestrian under or overpass is desired to connect the portion 
of the town that is east of HWY 550 to the west side. This project should contribute to that 
amenity and safety enhancement. 

24. The gravity sewer line should be extended to accommodate this project and others. 
25. A second water supply line from west of the river and/or more storage should be installed to 

better serve this project and others. 
26. Site Plan:  

a. It appears that the area next to the basin will be a park. FYI/reminder - If it's not 
already being done, the basin can double as an amphitheater, play area, etc. as long 
as it serves its purpose when it rains. 

27. Preliminary Drainage and Stormwater Retention Plan:  
a. A maintenance access point is not seen. How is the basin intended to be maintained? 
b. 1ft minimum of freeboard is required above overflow elevation. Inlet elevation is only 

0.7ft above. 
c. The basin's inlet will need a forebay. 
d. An outlet box designed to match current site runoff or less will be required and needs 

to be reviewed. The outlet should accommodate WQCV requirements. 
e. Maintenance will be the responsibility of the development but an outlet pipe of 12" is 

recommended to facilitate easy cleaning and reduce clogging risk. 
f. If the design is continuing to rely on infiltration, calcs and rates are needed. If not, 

ensure the bottom is sloped (>=2%) towards outlet to prevent standing water. 
g. It is difficult to tell what the basin's side slopes are, be sure they are not steeper than 

3H:1V. 
h. Details are not seen but remember that downspouts should not sheet flow onto 

sidewalks, parking, or driving areas, and building entries need to be 12" above the top 
of the gutter. 

i. Inlet, outlet, and emergency overflow will require erosion protection. 
j. Streets and parking are all shown to drain to the basin but the basin needs to ensure 

other areas are able to be captured there as well. Only a maximum of 5% of the site 
may bypass the pond (and if 5% does bypass then outlet flows need to be 
compensated for undetained flow in order to match historic rates). 

28. Stormwater/Retention Calcs: 
a. Rainfall intensity should be based on the site's time of concentration (TC) pre and post-

development, not 1.75in/hr. Use predevelopment TC and relative storm to determine 
historic site discharge rates which cannot be exceeded. 

b. C value of 0.35 was used for pre-development. The C value for undeveloped land is 
0.02. Table 1 on the Storm Standards then needs to be utilized to determine a realistic 
C value for the design storm when using the Rational Method. 

29. Additional analysis was provided on the sewer load calcs (pg. 11), however, these calculations 
will need to be further analyzed and verified with additional information provided with the 
preliminary plat. It is believed that the gravity line should be extended. 

30. 4" services are likely too small for the multi-unit buildings. This will need to be further analyzed 
and understood with the preliminary plat. 



Town of Ridgway 
Lot 3 PUD 2Build Ridgway LLC Sketch Plan 
September 23, 2022 
Page 14 of 14 

 
 

31. All water lines that are used for potable or fire supply shall be looped.  The plans are still 
showing fire hydrant leads being used for domestic uses. 

32. Fire lines are likely to be undersized. This will need to be further analyzed and understood with 
the preliminary plat. 

33. Utility drawing remains very hard to decipher. The plans are very cluttered. 
34. Water service lines should not have bends. 
35. There should be a curb, gutter, and sidewalk on Redcliff. It is hard to determine if this is 

proposed. 
36. Clearly identify and depict the location and design of pedestrian facilities both internal and 

external to the site. 
37. The applicant shall provide the current CDOT Access Permit for Hunter Blvd. and verify with 

CDOT whether or not a new permit or a traffic study is necessary given the thresholds of that 
permit.  

38. The traffic study that will be submitted with the preliminary plat shall consider whether or not 
there is enough stack between the REMAX access and HWY 550 intersection along Hunter Blvd. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The property has been posted and proper notification has been completed by the Town in accordance with 
RMC §7-4-13. 
As of the drafting of this staff report, the Town has not received any written public comments. Some public 
comment was received during the informal discussion with Planning Commission on February 22, 2022, 
and at the previous hearing held on May 31, 2022. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Upon review of the application against applicable Town standards, staff recommends that the Town of 
Ridgway Planning Commission approve the Lot 3, 2 Build Ridgway Sketch Plan incorporating staff review 
comments into the finding. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 
“I move to approve the Lot 3, 2 Build Ridgway Sketch Plan with the following condition: 

1) The Applicant shall adequately address staff review comments prior to submittal of the Preliminary 
Plan and Preliminary Plat.” 

Alternative Motions: 
“I move to deny the Sketch Plan for Vintage Point Center finding that the criteria set forth in Section 
7-3-4(X) of the RMC have not been met.” 
“I move to table the Sketch Plan for Vintage Point Center to allow the applicant time to address 
___________.” 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Application and Support Materials 



 

 

 

 

 

 

8/01/22 

Update 8/22/22 

Hi TJ, Preston, and P&Z Members, 

Please see the attached 13‐page PDF, that represents an alternative plan for Lot 3 PUD.  I do believe that 
this may be more to your liking.  I created more of a central plaza that is very pedestrian centric.  I 
centered the plaza on the main water & electric service infrastructure.  I do believe this plan works very 
well from most perspectives.  Some of the main features with this layout: 

1) We end up with 1,200 Lineal feet of commercial store frontage 

2) Approximately 26,000 Sq Ft of commercial space 

3) 32 Higher end condo units above commercial to support financial feasibility of rental units 

4) 32 Market Rate – 1 & 2 Bedroom Apartment Units (Cimarron Apartments/Mixed Use Area) 

5) Building “G” – 8 Unit workforce affordable rental units (Developer Owned) 

6) Building “H” ‐ 8 Unit workforce affordable rental units (Deed Restricted or Town Owned) 

7) Vehicle traffic flow is very good, and the pedestrian centric plaza area has multiple 
community event opportunities 

8) Parking meets code for all uses proposed, and there are an additional 25 parallel parking 
spaces off‐site along the west side of Redcliff Drive. 

9) For an initial perspective… the 80’ width of our east‐west plaza area is the same distance 
between buildings as between the Sherbino & Kate’s on Clinton Street… with the added 
benefit of no cars/road in the middle… The length of the building frontages facing west & 
east in the plaza is 280’, which is near the length of Clinton St building frontages from Cora 
St to Mary St. 

10) This plan offers a nice View Corridor from Highway 550 through to commercial plaza of over 
320’ (Football field length).  Also, there is over a football field distance set back from the 
pondo units (Ridgway Village West Condo’s).  This will allow all pondo units to maintain their 
views of the mountains. 

11) We have an adequate area needed for our stormwater retention requirements, and a good 
size Kids Park of approximately 100’ x 120’ = 12,000 SqFt. 

12) The Cimarron Mixed‐Use and Affordable Apartment buildings have adequate space for Day 
Care, Laundry facilities, bike storage, and more. 

13) Please take note of the unique roof openings and landscaped areas at the center of each of 
the rental apartment buildings… This will bring more natural light within the units, and 
green space internally, for a better living experience… 



 

 

As most of you probably know by now… that Doug MacFarlane has passed on… Doug was my friend and 
I very much enjoyed working with him over the last 16 or so years… Doug contributed much to our little 
town, and I hope he can continue to send us his good vibes from his place in heaven. 

We will be bringing another architect on board to help us bring the complete vision forward. 

Our goal for this next P&Z meeting is to agree in principle with our general concept, 3 story density, 
design, and Mixed‐Use.  Also, to be in general agreement with Joanne regarding Utility plan.  I do believe 
that all utilities will work with a few additions/adjustments as shown on page 10 in attached PDF.   

I do really like the area we have left clear, at the North‐West corner of the parcel, so to accommodate 
the installation of sewer line under highway and adjustments to sewer line / lift station, a that change 
over plan is implemented. 

At some point we would like to share our micro‐grid opportunity, for this project, with you.  This will 
likely be a joint venture with Black Hills / San Miguel Power / and Developer.  We believe it is a step in 
the right direction for energy efficiency, that can truly make a difference. 

I look forward to meeting with you all at the Sept 27th meeting. 

Thanks again, 
Joe Nelson 
Vantage Point Center 

(970) 316‐1364 

Some Further Description per Page of Attached PDF: 

Page 1) Vantage Point Center – Site Plan: 
 General Layout of Roads, Parking, & Buildings 

 Buildings “A”, “B”, “C”, “D” – Mixed‐Use Center (23,760 SF Commercial Space with 32 each 

Condo’s above) 

 Hard Surface / Building Footprint / Green Space Calculations – (See spreadsheet at lower right) 

 Parking Calculation spreadsheet is on Page 2 

Page 2) Vantage Point Center – 1st Floor Commercial Floor Plan & Plaza Layout: 
 General Dimensions – Preliminary Walkways – Green Space  

 Parking Calculations spreadsheet for Page 1 

Page 3) Vantage Point Center – Commercial Center Building Elevation Samples: 
 Variety of elevation concepts – Attractive combinations of Stone / Stucco & Wood with 

elevation off‐sets and shapes. 

Page 4) Vantage Point Center – Preliminary 2nd & 3rd Floor Plans: 
 Floor plans for condo’s are backset from each level below with decks and nice views from each 

unit. 

 With the 50’ – 80’ separation between each building – all internal units get a variety of views 

through these corridors. 

Page 5) Vantage Point Center – Preliminary 2nd & 3rd Floor Condo Plans: 
 Larger Condo Floor Plans 



 

 

Page 6) Vantage Point Center – Preliminary Affordable Housing / Rental Buildings: 
 Building “G” – Proposed Developer Employee Housing Units – Floor Plan & Elevations 

 Building "H” – Proposed Town Affordable Units ‐ Deed Restricted Rentals / For Sale Units? 

(Question here is what does the town feel is needed?) 

 Note the open court at the center of each building.  This brings natural light & green space to 

the internal circulation… See common use laundry facilities. 

Page 7) Cimarron Apartments – Mixed Use - Preliminary 1st Floor Plans & Elevations: 
 Similar natural light & green space internally... A portion of the commercial area proposed here 

can be used for child care facilities. 

Page 8) Cimarron Apartments – Preliminary 2nd & 3rd Floor Plans: 
 
Page 9) Vantage Point Center / Lot 3 PUD Existing Utilities Plan: 

 For preliminary review ‐ town engineer’s reference 

Page 10) Vantage Point Center / Lot 3 PUD Proposed Utilities Changes: 
 For preliminary review by town engineer – Proposed Changes 

Page 11) Vantage Point Center / Lot 3 PUD Existing Utilities Plan – Sewer Calculations: 
 For preliminary town engineer’s reference – DFU Calculations & Sewer Line Analysis 

Page 12) Vantage Point Center / Lot 3 PUD – Preliminary Site Grades / Road Grades & 
Drainage: 

 For preliminary town engineer’s reference & evaluation 

Page 13) Vantage Point Center / Lot 3 PUD – Preliminary 100 Year Flood Calculation 
 For preliminary town engineer’s reference & evaluation 

 

 











3 – 25 ‐22 

Re: Sketch Plan Submittal Letter for Lot 3 PUD 

Town of Ridgway Planning & Zoning: 

 

Hi All, 

Wow… Were to start with this one… 

Our intention is to find a way, with cooperation from Staff & P&Z, to get past the multitude of obstacles 

that seem to be in the way of Developing Lot 3 PUD.  I hope it is recognized by all… that the existing Plat 

reflects 30‐year‐old concept has not worked, and certainly not a market relevant project going forward.  

Our intent with applying for this Sketch Plan Hearing, is to begin the path forward for a new concept that 

can utilized as much of the existing infrastructure as possible and resolve some of the “skeletons in the 

closet” regarding this parcel. 

Some of the considerations and benefits that we would like to discuss and receive initial feedback from 

P&Z and the Public: 

1) We believe this parcel has the best and safest… vehicle traffic loading on & off from our busy 

highways and it is one of the only parcels in town that is suitable for a higher density housing 

and further mixed‐use commercial development.  Our Plan has significant on & off‐street 

parking along with adequate feeder roads to accommodate higher density housing along with 

Mixed‐Use Commercial. 

2) Lot 3 PUD has access from a significant investment into paved town roads within the Ridgway 

Land Company Development.  Along with significant investment in approved town sewer and 

water infrastructure.  This infrastructure is not generating the tax base or systems support that 

it could.  In fact… to the contrary… it costs the town quite a bit each year to maintain and 

provide snow removal for these roads. 

3) Development of this parcel will bring near $1 million into the town’s Water & Sewer System 

entities from Water & Sewer Tap Fees from systems that already exist. 

4) We have some opportunity to help support our town workforce with a 36 Unit rental 

apartment complex along with some employer based… employee housing. 

5) We believe our Mix‐Use Area complex can add a generous 20,000 SF of modern & reliable 

commercial space along with our higher end condo units above.  Our Mixed‐Use Area does 

need to be 3 story to offset some of the cost of the 2 story apartments planned.  One of the 

accommodations we are proposing… is to help the adjoining “Pondo” owners maintain as much 

of their mountain views as possible with our 2 story Apartments design.  We believe the 

Apartments proposed with their staggered footprints are of a proper scale and will be a good‐

looking profile, as seen from the highway.  (Full computer‐generated views will be available and 

distributed before our April 26 meeting).  (Please see Pages 13, 14 & 15 of attached Sketch Plan 

Package to see ‐ 3D superimposed views of our proposed buildings… Views originate standing 

on the pedestrian path at near the middle of each “Pondo” building shown).  Colors and 

architecture represented here… is only to bring some scale.  Much more refinement to come 

with architecture, colors, and computer modeling. 



6) We are confident that we can handle our 100‐year Flood Retention Requirements as we work 

through that engineering with staff.  See preliminary plan on Page 2 of our package.  Retention 

calc’s on Page 3 will be worked out and confirmed with staff.  Please note on Page 3 at the 

bottom right of the Built Footprint / Green Space Spreadsheet… Hard Surface Built Footprint is 

near 4 Acres or 45% of the whole 8.955 acres and Green Space totaling near 5 Acres or 55%. 

7) Page 4 represents preliminary thoughts regarding the existing utilities along with additions / 

alterations to the existing systems.  Obviously, this is to be worked out with staff.  We propose 

to work with staff towards solutions for the towns desire to eventually convert from the 

existing lift / pump station, that exists on Lot 3 PUD, and a conversion to a gravity flow 

extension, staff has proposed. 

8) Pages 5 & 6 are some narratives and supporting spread sheets for staff consideration of the 

proposed changes to the existing sewer & water systems.  Including volume calculations for 

proposed Water Use & Sewer system flows / capacity. 

9) Page 7 represents existing utilities, as built, to support staff’s consideration. 

10) Pages 8 & 9 represent some very preliminary Design & Floor Plans for Mixed‐Use Buildings.  We 

propose to stay within the dimensions and heights represented here.  Final designs will be 

much more exciting.  These preliminary dimensional designs where needed to be established 

the calculations needed for 100‐Year Flood retention. 

11) Pages 10 & 11 represent our preliminary restaurant & rooftop pool concept in our Mixed‐Use 

Plan. 

12) Page 12 represents the basic look and floor plans for our Westside apartment complex and will 

be further detailed as we progress. 

13) Pages 13, 14 & 15… These are very preliminary views and are meant to represent the view 

corridors and scale as seen from the “Pondo’s”. 

14) How can the Town help to bring one of the most significant pieces of zoned & Improved Land in 

Town… towards completion and a viable Tax generating base? 

Some of the problem areas that need solutions: 

1) The ReMax Building is 25’ to the North and 6’ to the East outside of its original approved plat 

pad.  (See existing footprint, as built, represented in dashed red lines at the lower right of our 

Page 1 Site Plan).  I am talking with Shelly Dackonish (Our Real‐Estate & Land‐Use Attorney) for 

some thoughts on the best way to model our proposed new PUD Plat with the Remax building 

encroachment… I would propose she work directly with Bo and TJ for planning the best way to 

structure the New PUD and New or Amended C, C, R’s and such. 

  

2) Please see Page 16… The question here is: are we better off creating 4 exclusive‐use larger Pads 

in a PUD process… with Area 3 being for developing Mixed‐Use area and its own responsibility 

to Maintain… likewise Area 2 for Apartments, and Area 1 for Remax.  Area 4 would be primarily 

a common element for main road & retention pond.  We would propose this road be privately 

owned & maintained.  Note: I would propose that the required parking be dedicated to and 

maintained per each area. 

 

 



3) The intersection at the signal and about a half block east… on Hunter Parkway… has a 

stormwater drainage system that is dysfunctional and could be dangerous to traffic traveling at 

higher speeds through the signal, on a green light during heavy rains.  This needs to be 

addressed.  I believe that a bar ditch that received the storm water flow from this drain system 

may have been back filled… or a drainage sump system is too small or has not been maintained.  

I hope to work with staff to see if town has any records.  Engineers as‐builts show inlets & 

piping… yet I can’t find a drainage outlet.  I do know, the concern has been there for years, and 

town maintenance staff has tried to clear it with no luck. 

 

4) We need to understand what has happened with some of the missing infrastructure items that 

were committed to… by the developer… in their “Annexation and Utility Extension Agreement 

with Town”… along with the status of “Irrevocable Line of Credit” required for Final Plat.   As an 

example, the “back‐up generator for the lift station”, that does not exist and the status of, “the 

creation of an Improvement District”, required in the recorded “Ridgway Land Company 

Subdivision Plat Restriction”.  This agreement was to complete the sidewalks along Hunter 

Parkway (Partially Done), and Cimarron Drive (Not Done). 

 

Thank You, 

Joe Nelson 

 









































































































































































 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #3 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
 

  AUGUST 30, 2022 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The Planning Commission convened both in-person at 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado and via 
Zoom Meeting, a virtual meeting platform, pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Commissioners Liske, Nelson, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Meyer, Mayor Clark and Chairperson Montague were in attendance.  Commissioner Franz was absent, and 
Commissioner Emilson was late. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
    
1. Application for Sketch Plan Location: McChesney Minor Subdivision, Lot 2; Zone: Residential and Future 

Development; Applicant: Chris Hawkins DBA/Alpine Planning, LLC, Owner: Four Winds Ranch, LLLP and 
Estate of Bernadine C. Endicott 
 
Staff Report dated August 26, 2022, presenting background, analysis and recommendation prepared by 
TJ Dlubac, AICP of Community Planning Strategies. The Staff Report included public comment letters 
received for the May 30,2022 Regular Planning Commission Meeting, from Ridgway residents Charles and 
Kathy Ewert, Nichole Moorman, Fred and Margaret Quist, Glen and Connie Anderson, Anthony Gegauff, 
Kevin Chismire, Dan Brillon, David Burger, Jeannemarie Smith, Michelle and Mark Smail, Joan Chismire, 
Audra Duke, Jack and Karen Fay, Stephen McComb and Bob Tesch.  Ann Mellick, Anthony Gegauff and 
David Burger submitted additional comment letters after the agenda packet was published, but prior to the 
meeting. 
 
TJ Dlubac presented an Application for a Sketch Plan for a subdivision that would include 20 single family 
homes, with the possibility of 20 accessory dwelling units (ADU) as a use by right. The subdivision would 
be constructed on the vacant Lot 2 of the McChesney Subdivision (zoned Future Development) and 
include 9.5 adjacent acres of the Endicott parcel (zoned Residential) in which a single-family home exists. 
He reviewed access to the proposed subdivision, parking, utilities, Master Plan conformance, land use and 
dimensional standards. Dlubac noted that though the proposed project conforms to the Master Plan, 
impacts for up to 20 ADU’s, and only one access point to the subdivision via Terrace Drive from Highway 
550 should be considered. 
 
The Planner explained the proposed project would trigger improvements to Highway 550 and the applicant 
has had preliminary discussions with the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) since the 
highway is CDOT’s jurisdiction. He commented Staff is agreeable to the requests for gravel roads within 
the proposed subdivision, but safe pedestrian connections must be provided through the subdivision.  
 
Dlubac said there is an existing water main line going to the subdivision and the applicant is 
recommending the installation of a second water tank, though Staff does not think this is a comprehensive 
solution to ensure water supply or pressure. The Planner explained septic systems will be utilized for each 
parcel’s sewer as an interim solution for a sanitized treatment system, noting the proposed project cannot 
be served by the existing sewer lines which would require a significant investment from the Town for the 
lines to be extended to each parcel.  He recommended plat notes for each parcel stating the property 
owner would be required to contribute to a General Improvement District for the subdivision’s future public 
improvements and utility connections. 
 



Planning Commission 
August 30, 2022 
Page 2 

 
Planner Dlubac recommended approval of the application with the conditions noted in the Staff Report 
dated August 26, 2022, and per the comments discussed in the review letter dated September 10, 2022 
(noted as August 10, 2022, in the Staff Report). 
 

Commissioner Emilson entered the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 

The Planning Commission discussed the application with staff. The Commission noted the parcel is not in 
the Town’s initial growth boundary on the Land Use Map.  
 
Eric Foust, Developer for the Applicant introduced the Development Team. He noted the team members 
live and/or work in Montrose or Ridgway, explained their diverse backgrounds and stressed the level of 
commitment and accountability to the Town from the Team. Foust explained that the subdivisions’ ADU 
covenants would be long-term rentals only and would be available only to people who live or work in Ouray 
County. He further explained the covenants will require homes to be 70% solar powered, require conduit 
for electric vehicle charging; the sagebrush habitat will remain protected, grass watering will virtually be 
eliminated; the square footage of the homes will range from 2500sq. ft.- 4800sq. ft. and 30% of the parcel 
will remain open space. 
 
Applicant Chris Hawkins explained the parcels were annexed into the town limits in 1981 and designated 
as a residential zone at that time. He outlined the zoning and rezoning occurring with Lot 1 and Lot 2 
pursuant to town archives, noting development has always been the intention for both parcels. Hawkins 
also compared the proposed subdivision with the Vista Terrace Subdivision. He revealed the Vista Terrace 
Subdivision consists of more acreage, more lots, has higher density and less open space than the 
proposed neighboring subdivision.   
 
Mr. Hawkins explained protecting the sage brush habitat for wildlife is a priority with the development and 
will be incorporated into the landscaping. No permanent fencing will be allowed, fenced dog runs and bear-
proof trash containers that are stored inside will be required. He clarified the development is not intended 
to mirror the Vista Terrace Subdivision.  
 
Roger Freeman, renewable energy specialist and member of the Development Team provided background 
on renewable energy covenants and the advantages of installing sustainable, renewable technology at the 
time homes are constructed verses retrofitting. He explained the solar and sustainable technologies for 
each home in the proposed subdivision will have an integrated design for current and future trends. 
 
Hawkins commented that the Master Plan allows up to 43 units to be developed on the parcel and the 
request before the Commission is for 20. He noted the open space consists of natural slopes with a 30% 
grade, and that is considered a buildable area in most communities. Mr. Hawkins further explained the 
proposed development comports with the Master Plan, and water conservation will be encouraged. He 
commented that the development may propose a pedestrian/bike trial to the river, homeowners will be 
required to participate in an improvement district, ADU’s may be capped at 25%, and a traffic study will be 
coordinated with the Department of Transportation (CDOT). 
 
The Planning Commission acknowledge the change in philosophies over time and with the current 
population in Ridgway regarding zoning, de-zoning, and rezoning that has occurred. They also expressed 
concerns regarding the number of proposed homes. 
 

Chairperson Montague confirmed that each Commissioner reviewed the 3 letters submitted to the agenda 
packet as a late addition. 
 
The Chairperson opened the hearing for public comment. 
 
       Steven McComb expressed concerns regarding the lack of a secondary egress in the entrance plan. He 

produced and presented a traffic analysis video of the Terrace Drive/ Highway 550 intersection. The video 
illustrated in real-time traffic flow, the dangerous congestion and difficulty for pedestrians crossing the 



Planning Commission 
August 30, 2022 
Page 3 

 
highway, and difficulty for vehicles to enter the highway at the intersection. Mr. McComb said the current 
northbound acceleration lane is too small for the existing traffic, the proposed pedestrian/bike path 
discharges at the intersection, and a secondary egress is needed to relieve the traffic at the intersection. 
He asked the Commission to thoroughly review the application and not approve it since this dangerous 
situation has not been adequately addressed in the hearing packet. 

 
      Dan Brillon said the proposed subdivision does not match the look and feel of the Vista Terrace 

Subdivision, the proposed subdivision changes the neighborhood’s character and is not an appropriate 
transition. 

       
       Anthony Gegauff expressed concerns that Terrace Drive is the only entrance or exit to the Vista Terrace 

Subdivision and the proposed Subdivision. He noted concern that there would be no way out of either 
subdivision if a fire broke out in the dense vegetation located at the intersection of Terrace Drive and Vista 
Drive. Mr. Gegauff also stated gravel roads are not acceptable due to maintenance on steep slopes, and 
that the plowed mud and ice would flow down to the catch basin in Vista Terrace causing additional road 
maintenance issues. He stated there needs to be a separate emergency egress for the proposed 
subdivision.  

   
       Pam Foyster said the proposed project does not meet criteria for approval when put into context of the 

Master Plan’s community values, specifically items 1-5. Foyster expressed opposition to funding a general 
improvement district, allowing dogs and cats to roam unattended in yards and only one egress into the 
Vista Terrace Subdivision. She said Lot 2 was intentionally categorized out of the Initial Growth Boundary 
during the Master Plan process because growth has been focused on the core of town and expanded from 
that point. Ms. Foyster called the proposed project a “leap-frog project” because it is proposed to occur 
prior to the 2019 Master Plan’s projected growth.  Foyster pointed out that the Master Plan’s projected 
growth for this parcel is to occur within 10-20 years. Allowing the development to proceed before the Town 
can accommodate the growth creates problems that are delt with reactively she concluded. 

 
      Ouray County resident, Russ Caplan, who considers himself a “candidate resident” said the all-electric 

nature of the proposed project makes sense and expressed concern about the ingress and egress into the 
subdivision. He suggested reducing the speed limit through that section of the highway to enhance safety. 

 
       Ann Mellick said the proposed size for the homes is not in character with Ridgway and asked that the 

allowed size for the structures be reduced. Mellick questioned if the step plan for the Endicott acreage 
means more future development. She said the open space is not useable and expressed concerns 
regarding water delivery. Mellick asked the Commissioners to “slow down” consideration of the application. 

 
      Roy Clingan expressed concerns regarding the validity of the Water Assessment Report and current water 

availability and use, as well as the number of deer hit on Highway 550. Clingan asked if the proposed 
homeowners association would affect Vista Terrace residents and if modular homes would be allowed. 

 
      Kuno Vollenweider shared his experience with erecting structures on slopes greater than 20 degrees and 

warned that building on a slope invites erosion and visual impact issues.  
       
The Chairperson closed the hearing for public comment. 
 

The Planning Commission discussed the application with staff. They acknowledged that the ingress/egress 
issue is the biggest concern with residents, and that it is an existing issue with the Vista Terrace 
Subdivision. They noted the proposal does not address fire safety issues, expressed concern for the 
number of septic systems, the density proposed, homes constructed on the ridge lines and the parcel not 
being situated in the Initial Growth Boundary on the 2019 Land Use Map.  
 

 The Chairperson opened the hearing for public comment so that Contractor Foust could address their 
questions. 

 



Planning Commission 
August 30, 2022 
Page 4 

 
Foust said the project would move forward with conditional approval. A traffic study has already been 
performed by an independent traffic engineer and that has been submitted to CDOT to address the 
highway issue. The Development Team would work with the Town to find a reasonable solution to the 
egress problem. The Team will also try to resolve the existing egress problem on the highway that 
currently affects the Vista Terrace Subdivision on behalf of the neighborhood.  
 

The Chairperson closed the hearing for public comment. 
 
        The Commissioners continued the discussion with staff and the applicant. They commented that a revised 

Sketch Plan should include a secondary easement, resolution for the wildlife corridor running through the 
parcel, resolution for the egress issue, reduced density, and how to deliver adequate water supply and 
sewer sanitation to the new development.   

 
        Mr. Foust requested a 4-month continuance to address the concerns discussed in the hearing. 
 
ACTION: 

          
          Mayor Clark moved to continue the Application for Sketch Plan for: Location: McChesney Minor Subdivision, 

Lot 2; Zone: Residential and Future Development; Applicant: Chris Hawkins DBA/Alpine Planning, LLC to the 
December Regular Planning Commission Meeting to provide time for the Applicant to work through the 
findings in the Staff Report dated August 26, 2022, and to address the Planning Commissions concerns 
discussed in this hearing. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Meyer. On a call for the roll call vote, 
the motion carried unanimously. 

 
The Commission paused for a break at 8:15 p.m. and resumed at 8:25 p.m. 

 
2. Application for Final Plat; Location: Town of Ridgway, Block 20, Lots 16-18; Zone: Historic Residential; 

Applicant: Beth Lakin; Owner Beth Lakin 
 

Chairperson Montague recused herself from the hearing due to a conflict of interest. Mayor Clark assumed the 
role of Chairperson during the hearing. 

 
   Staff Report dated August 26, 2022, presenting background, analysis and recommendation and Review 

Letter dated August 26, 2022, regarding plat review comments, prepared by TJ Dlubac, AICP of 
Community Planning Strategies.  

 
   Dlubac presented an Application for Final Plat that would subdivide one parcel containing Lots 16-18 into 2 

lots; requiring the sewer line to be extended to the newly created lot. The Planner explained the work is 
underway and will be completed before a structure is built on the newly created parcel. He reviewed the 
current dimensional standards, access and utilities as they exist after the lot split. Mr. Dlubac noted the 
gravel driveway for Lot 1 encroaches onto Lot 2 and will require an easement if the driveway is to remain 
in place or it will need to be removed. He recommended approval of the application with the following 
conditions: 1.) The applicant shall address all outstanding planning comments identified in the review 
comment letter dated August 26, 2022, to the satisfaction of the Town Staff prior to the application being 
scheduled for consideration at the Town Council. 2.) The sewer line extension shall be completed and 
accepted by the Town prior to a building permit being issued for Lot 2. 

    
        Applicant Beth Lakin said a garage will be constructed off the alley for Lot 1 and parking will be off the 

alley. She said the encroaching driveway is no longer needed so she will park in the alley from now on. 
 
The Chairperson opened the hearing for public comment. 
 
       Michelle Montague said she is in favor of the lot split.  
 
The Chairperson closed the hearing for public comment. 



Planning Commission 
August 30, 2022 
Page 5 

 
 
ACTION: 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Meyer moved to recommend approval to the Town Council for the Application for Final Plat; 
Location Town of Ridgway, Block 20, Lots 16-18; Zone: Historic Residential; Applicant: Beth Lakin; Owner 
Beth Lakin, with the following conditions: 1.) The applicant shall address all outstanding planning comments 
identified in the review comment letter dated August 26, 2022, to the satisfaction of the Town Staff prior to the 
application being scheduled for consideration at the Town Council. 2.) The sewer line extension shall be 
completed and accepted by the Town prior to a building permit being issued for Lot 2. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Nelson. On a call for the roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chairperson Montague re-entered the public hearing.  
 
3. Continuance Request for Application for Sketch Plan; Location: Lot 3 PUD, Ridgway Land Company 

Subdivision; Zone: General Commercial; Applicant: 2-Build Ridgway, LLC; Owner: Ridgway Land 
Company, LLLP  
 
Staff Report dated August 26, 2022, presenting background, analysis and recommendation prepared by 
TJ Dlubac, AICP of Community Planning Strategies. 
 
The Planner explained the application was continued at the July Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
and the applicant is requesting another continuance to the September Regular Planning Commission 
Meeting.  Dlubac noted Staff agrees with the Applicant. 
 
Joe Nelson, member of 2-Build Ridgway, LLC, stated the Team’s engineer passed away and the 
application should be ready for the Commission’s review in September. 
. 

The Chairperson opened the hearing for public comment. 
 

Jack Petruccelli asked for clarification regarding the application continuance process as it relates to the     
current emergency ordinance which established a temporary moratorium on accepting applications for 
minor subdivisions, lot splits, replats, plat amendments, multisite developments, planned unit 
developments and rezoning applications. He was advised that applications accepted by staff and the 
Planning Commission prior to, and up to the day of the moratorium are exempt. 

 
The Chairperson closed the hearing for public comment. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Meyer moved to approve the continuance for the Application for Sketch Plan for Lot 3 PUD 
until the September 27, 2022, Regular Planning Commission Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Clark. On a call for the roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVALOF THE MINUTES 
 
4.  Approval of the Minutes from the Meeting of July 26,2022 

 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Meyer moved to approve the Minutes from July 26, 2022. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Clark. On a call for the roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously with Commissioner Emilson abstaining. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
5.  UPDATES FROM PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 



Planning Commission 
August 30, 2022 
Page 6 

 
Planner Dlubac said that planning process and standards, along with Ridgway Municipal Code, Chapter 7 
Planning and Zoning should be reviewed during the moratorium. He requested a special workshop meeting 
to present proposed updates and to identify problems and to discuss the scope of the project.  
 
The Planning Commission agreed to hold a Special Workshop Meeting on September 22, 2022, at 5:30 
p.m. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Karen Christian 
Deputy Clerk 

 


	00 agenda
	01 Agenda Item 1
	02 Lot 17_Var_PC_Pkt_2022.0923
	Lot 17_Var_PC_SR_2022.0923
	01_Application
	02_Site Plan

	03 Agenda Item 2
	04 Lot3_2BuildRidgway_SP_PC_Pkt_2022.0927
	Lot3_2BuildRidgway_SP_PC_SR_2022.0927
	00_8-22-22 Outline Letter for Staff & P&Z - New Plan
	01 - 2022.03.29 PC Hearing Request
	02 - Introduction to P&Z Letter 3-24-22
	03_Vantage Point - Lot 3 PUD - Update 8-19-22
	04_Lot 3 PUD Owner Authorization
	05 - Lot 3 PUD Approved Plat Pgs 1&2
	06Lot 3 PUD - Declaration of C,C&R's
	8 - Lot 3 PUD - Annexation and Utilities Agreement 1990
	9 - Lot 3 PUD - Origonal SIA - 10-09-90
	10 - Lot 3 PUD - Plat Restrictions
	Lot3PUD_SP_Sec

	05 Agenda Item 3
	06 Aug 30 minutes



